
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, December 19, 2016 
4:00 p.m. Open Session   

 
City Hall Council Chambers 

East side of Monte Verde Street 
Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR   
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
      ALEX HEISENGER 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
 NA 
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do 
so now.  Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the 
Board’s agenda will not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future 
meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  
Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state 
their name in order that the Secretary may identify them.  
 
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Minutes from the October 17, 2016 Historic Resources Board Meeting 

 
F.  ITEM 
 
2. DR 16-293 (Spaits) 
 Jason Spaits 
 NE Corner Ocean Ave. and Dolores St. 
      Block: 71;  Lots: 8 and 9  
      APN: 010-134-009 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DS 16-
293) application for alterations to a historic 
building (Carmel Bank building) located in 
the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning 
District.  

 
                                                 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
December 19, 2016 

Page 1 



 
 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT –  
 
1. Future discussion/meeting item - Historic Preservation Ordinance – CMC Section 17.32 
 
H. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 
 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the 
Planning and Building Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean 
and 7th Avenues during normal business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board:  TBD 
      
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired 
(TDD) number is 1-800-735-2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to 
come to the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board 
Secretary.  If you need assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you 
would like to comment on, and the microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-
the-Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin 
board, posted at the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, December 16, 
2016. 
 
Dated this16th day of December, 2016, at the hour of 4:00 p.m. 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
December 19, 2016 

Page 2 



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

October 17, 2016 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:06 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Lynn Momboisse 
Kathryn Gualtieri 
Lynn Momboisse 
Thomas Hood 

 
              ABSENT:  N/A 

 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Acting Community Planning and Building Director 

Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner  
Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
The Commission convened at 2:45 p.m. and then toured the following sites:  

• DS 16-306 (Garren), Santa Rita St. 3 NE of 6th Ave.; Blk: 62, Lot(s): 14 
• DS 16-377 (Ayers), Carmelo St., 2 SW of 13th Ave.; Blk: 2, Lot(s): 7 &9 
• DS 16-308 (Henderson), NW corner of Scenic and Martin Way; Blk: B18, Lot(s): 1 

& 2 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D. APPEARANCES 

N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Consideration of the minutes of the August 22, 2016 Historic Resources Board 

Meeting. 
 



Board Member Gualtieri moved to approve the August 22, 2016 minutes. Motion 
seconded by Board Member Momboisse and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-
0-0-0. 
 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
F. ITEM 

 
      1. MP 16-002 (City War Memorial) 
      American Legion Post 512 
      Ocean and San Carlos  

             
        

 Consideration of the bracket design for the 
replacement of the War Memorial Bell on the 
Ocean Avenue median, at the intersection of 
Ocean Avenue and San Carlos Street. 

Marc Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director summarized staff report.  
 
Speaker #1: Paul Rodriguez, General Manager for the American Legion Post 512 
presented photographs of the War Memorial and clarified bracket design details.  
 
Speaker #2: Richard Kreitman discussed the bell installation schedule and informed the 
Board that Carmel High students assisted in the creation of the brackets.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. Seeing no speakers Chair Dyar closed the public 
hearing. 
 
The Board held brief discussion.  

 
Board Member Gualtieri moved to approve MP 16-002 (City War Memorial). Motion 
seconded by Board Member Hood and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-0-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 
 
 
 



2.  DR 16-308 (Henderson)  
            Chuck Henderson 
            NW corner of Scenic and Martin Way 
            Block: B18, Lots: 1 & 2 
            APN: 009-423-001   
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-308) 
application for the repair of a historic 
residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) and Beach and Riparian 
Overlay (BR) Zoning Districts. 

 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Marc Wiener, Planning Director provided site history and summarized proposed repair 
plan. Mr. Wiener noted DR 16-308 (Henderson) was reviewed by the City Historian, Kent 
Seavy.  
 
Speaker #1: Applicant, Chuck Henderson informed the Board of the Henderson family’s 
desire to maintain the residence and answered questions from the Commission.   
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. Seeing no speakers the public hearing was closed. 
 
Board Members held brief discussion. Chair Dyar thanked the Henderson family for their 
continued stewardship of their property.  
 
Board Member Momboisse moved to Issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary of Interior’s Standards. Motion seconded by Board Member Hood and 
carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-0-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI, HOOD, MOMBOISSE & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

3.  DR 16-276 (Holtkamp) 
            Ken and Sharon Holtkamp 
            SW corner of San Carlos St. & 12th   
            Block: 143, Lots: 31,33 & 35 
            APN: 010-164-001         
 

 Consideration of a Design Study ( DS 16-276) 
for alterations to a historic residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) 
Zoning District. 

Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner summarized staff report and answered questions 
from the Historic Resources Board. 
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 



Speaker #1: Ken Holtkamp, Applicant/Owner provided property history and answered 
questions from the Board.  
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
The Board held discussion. 
 
Board Member Momboisse motioned to Issue a Determination of Consistency with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for DS 16-276 (Holtkamp) with the condition 
to differentiate new dormers from the existing. Motion seconded by Board Member 
Gualtieri and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-0-0. 
 
AYES:              COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI &      
                                        DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

4.    DS 16-377 (Ayres) 
              Janet Ayers 

Carmelo St., 2 SW of 13th  
Blk: 2, Lot(s): 7 & 9 
APN: 010-287-002 

       
            

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-377) 
for alterations to a historic residence located 
in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District.  

Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner presented staff report.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: Craig Holdren, Applicant/Architect summarized design details and clarified 
the proposed conservatory. Mr. Holden answered questions from the Historic Resources 
Board. 

 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing.  
 
Board Members held discussion. The Board spoke in favor of the design and 
recommended the Architect considers an all glass conservatory. 
 
Board Member Hood motioned to Issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards with the request the Architect to work with staff 
to explore expanding the glass on the conservatory and differentiate the stucco on the 
addition. Motion seconded by Board Member Gualtieri and carried by the following 
roll call vote: 4-0-0-0. 



 
AYES:              COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI &      
                                        DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

5.    DS 16-306 (Garren) 
              Ron and Donna Garren  

Santa Rita St., 3 NE of 6th Ave.  
Blk: 62, Lot: 14 
APN: 010-035-013 

       
            

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-306) 
for alterations to a historic residence located 
in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District.  

Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner presented staff report.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Glenn Warner, Architect expressed willingness to install French doors rather 
than a sliding door on the second story elevation.  
 
 The public hearing was closed.  
 
Board Members held discussion.  
 
Board Member Hood motioned to Issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for DS 16-306 (Garren) for the rehabilitation and 
addition to a historic structure, with direction to consider repairs and restoration to 
the exterior wood overhang and siding as necessary. Motion seconded by Board 
Member Momboisse and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-0-0. 
 
AYES:              COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI &      
                                        DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Marc Wiener announced Julie Wendt, former Historic Resources Board member was 
appointed to the Planning Commission. Mr. Wiener provided a brief City Council activity 
update.  

 



H.  SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT   

Chair Dyar noted the Mid-Century committee will reconvene in the near future and 
begin work to revise the Historic Context Statement.  

 

I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 N/A 
 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Chair Dyar announced upcoming events at the Cherry Center.  
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:45 p.m. 
 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

December 19, 2016 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Review (DR 16-293) for alterations to an 

historic building (Bank of Carmel / Paradise Building) located in the 
Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. 
 
Application: DR 16-293 (Spaits) APN:  010-134-009 
Block:  71                            Lots:  8 and 9 
Location: NE corner of Ocean Avenue and Dolores Street 
Applicant:  Christopher Barlow, Architect/WR&D Architects  
Property Owner:  Jason Spaits  Business Name:  Enlightenment Zone 
 
Background 
The Historic Resources Board (HRB) reviewed this Design Review application on August 22, 
2016.  At that meeting, the HRB determined that the stained glass windows should be removed 
and that the applicant consider using the existing steel casement windows outfitted with new 
glass as would have existed in 1938 when the building was constructed.   
 
Subsequent to this meeting the applicant conducted research on the history of the building and 
found that the stained glass windows were installed sometime in the 1980’s and furthermore, 
that the original blue-print specifications for the building stipulated that clear glazing be used.  
Refer to Attachments A and B. 
 
The subject building was constructed in 1938 as a bank and remained a bank until 1972 
whereupon it became a commercial retail building.  Per the DPR 523 form (Attachment C), the 
Bank of Carmel building qualifies under Criteria #3 of the California Register as significant 



DR 16-293 (Spaits) 
December 19, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
because, (1) it is the only 1930s Art Deco style building in Carmel, (2) it was designed by C.J. 
Ryland, who also designed the original Sunset School auditorium, and (3) the two bas reliefs by 
artist Paul Whitman are still intact. 
 
Proposed Project 
The applicant is proposing to replace the three existing stained-glass windows at street level on 
the west elevation of the historic Bank of Carmel building with regular glazed window to show 
mannequins.  A mannequin would be installed within the building and immediately behind each 
window. Said mannequin will show t-shirts advertising the ‘Enlightenment Zone’ business 
located to the north of the proposed mannequin display.  Windows will remain closed at all 
times but also remain operational.  In addition, the mannequins may be illuminated from above 
but that would be by separate application to the City and is not part of this application.  In 
addition, the mannequins constitute additional signage (‘interior display’) in excess of what the 
Carmel Municipal Code will allow, and will be required to be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission under separate application. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act requires environmental 
review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards.  To determine if a project is consistent requires defining what the 
building’s character defining features are.  The character defining features of this Art Deco style 
building where defined in the aforementioned DPR 523 Form and include the two bas reliefs on 
the building’s front façade (south elevation) by noted resident artist Paul Whitman, recessed 
metal casement windows, beveled window sills, vertical columns on the west elevation with 
rounded tops and beveled edges where flanking the clerestory1 glass block windows, beveled 
corners at the building edges, and the continuous horizontal parapet.  The character defining 
features that no longer exist as a result of the remodel of the building include the aluminum 
main-entry doors made of bronze and glass, and the curved concrete walls on the south 
elevation with clerestory glass-block windows above.  
 
Alterations:  Alterations to historic buildings must be evaluated for conformance with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  Standards which are relevant to this proposal include the 
following:   
 

1  In architecture, a clerestory is a high section of wall that contains windows above eye level.  The purpose is to 
admit light, fresh air, or both. 

                                              



DR 16-293 (Spaits) 
December 19, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 

#2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The removal of 
historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall 
be avoided." 

 
#9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be differentiated 
from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features 
to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment." 

 
Each of the above Standards addresses the proposed project’s potential impact relative to the 
alterations of features that characterize the property, preserving distinctive features, exterior 
alterations that may affect historic materials, and the reversal of construction.      
 
The proposed project was reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation Consultant, Kent Seavey 
(via phone call dated December 13, 2016).  Mr. Seavey’s assessment of the proposal is that the 
project is consistent with the Standards because the removal of stained glass windows and 
replacement with new clear-tempered glass within the existing steel sash windows constitutes 
restoring the building to its original condition.    
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could find the application 
inconsistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  In the later case, the applicant has 
the option to appeal the decision to the Planning Commission.   
 
Environmental Review:  The application qualifies for a Class 11 Categorical Exemption from the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15311 of the 
State CEQA Guidelines. Class 11 consists of construction, or placement of minor structures 
accessory to (appurtenant to) existing commercial, industrial, or institutional facilities, including 
but not limited to:  (a) On-premise signs. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Photos  
• Attachment B – Original blueprints  
• Attachment C – DPR 523 Form  
• Attachment D – Project Plans 

 





















ChristopherB
Rectangle

ChristopherB
Rectangle







Search insideFenestra blue book of steel windows

Page 1 of 1Fenestra blue book of steel windows

9/29/2016https://archive.org/stream/FenestraBlueBookOfSteelWindows






 

Search insideFenestra blue book of steel windows

Page 1 of 1Fenestra blue book of steel windows

9/29/2016https://archive.org/stream/FenestraBlueBookOfSteelWindows

ChristopherB
Rectangle

ChristopherB
Line











SHEET INDEX

SHT. # SHEET TITLE

A001 COVER SHEET

A201

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN, ENLARGED FLOOR PLAN &

EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATION

A401 EXTERIOR ELEVATION & WINDOW SECTION

SHEET NO.

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT:

DATE:SHEET TITLE:

OLD CARMEL BANK BUILDING

NE CORNER OCEAN AVENUE + DOLORES STREET

CARMEL, CA 93921

COVER SHEET 9.29.2016SHEET TITLE:

OLD CARMEL BANK BUILDING

DISPLAY

NE CORNER OCEAN AVENUE + DOLORES STREET

CARMEL, CA 93921

APPROX. 7,120 S.F. / TWO(2) STORIESBUILDING AREA:

010134009000

NE CORNER OCEAN AVENUE &

DOLORES STREET CARMEL, CA 93921

PROJECT INFORMATION

APN:

LOCATION:

PROJECT: OLD CARMEL BANK BUILDING - DISPLAY

NEW INTERIOR DISPLAY AT THREE (3) EXISTING

EXTERIOR WINDOWS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT TEAM

ARCHITECT

OWNER

WALD, RUHNKE & DOST ARCHITECTS, LLP

2340 GARDEN ROAD, SUITE 100

MONTEREY, CA 93940

ph:  (831) 649-4642  fax:  (831) 649-3530

Email:  CHRISTOPHERB@WRDARCH.COM

Contact: CHRISTOPHER BARLOW

JASON SPAITS

1818 ALSUNA LANE

HUNTINGTON BEACH, 92648

ph:  (916)225-3751

Email:  JSPAITS@ME.COM

Contact: JASON SPAITS

VICINITY MAP

TRUE

NORTH

PROJECT

LOCATION



EXISTING STEEL SASH EXTERIOR

WINDOW FRAME TO REMAIN- REPLACE

EXISTING STAINED GLASS WINDOW

PANES WITH NEW CLEAR TEMPERED

GLASS WITHIN EXISTING STEEL SASH

WINDOW, TYPICAL OF THREE (3)

EXISTING STEEL SASH EXTERIOR

WINDOW FRAME TO REMAIN-

REPLACE EXISTING STAINED

GLASS WINDOW PANES WITH NEW

CLEAR TEMPERED  GLASS WITHIN

EXISTING STEEL SASH WINDOW,

TYPICAL OF THREE (3)

EXISTING NEWSPAPER STATION

TO REMAIN

SHEET NO.

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT:

DATE:SHEET TITLE:

OLD CARMEL BANK BUILDING

NE CORNER OCEAN AVENUE + DOLORES STREET

CARMEL, CA 93921

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN, ENLARGED FLOOR PLAN, EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATION 9.29.2016SHEET TITLE:

SCALE:

1 OVERALL FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1/16"=1'-0"

SCALE:

2 ENLARGED FLOOR PLAN
1/4"=1'-0"

2

~

3/~

SCALE:

3 EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATION
1/4"1'-0"

1

A401



EXISTING STEEL SASH EXTERIOR

WINDOW FRAME, MULLIONS, AND

HARDWARE TO REMAIN- PROTECT

FROM DAMAGE

OPTIONAL PUCK LIGHT (TO BE

SUBMITTED UNDER SEPARATE

ELECTRICAL PERMIT)

MERCHANDISE DISPLAY BY

TENANT

(E) WINDOW SILL HEIGHT

APPROX. 6'-9" A.F.F.

(E)± 2'-3"

EXTERIORINTERIOR

(E) NEWSPAPER

STATION

REPLACE EXISTING STAINED GLASS

WINDOW PANES WITH NEW CLEAR

TEMPERED  GLASS WITHIN EXISTING

STEEL SASH WINDOW

EXISTING WALL AND SILL

TO REMAIN - PROTECT

FROM DAMAGE

SHEET NO.

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT:

DATE:SHEET TITLE:

OLD CARMEL BANK BUILDING

NE CORNER OCEAN AVENUE + DOLORES STREET

CARMEL, CA 93921

EXTERIOR ELEVATION & WINDOW SECTION 9.29.2016SHEET TITLE:

SCALE:

1

(N) INTERIOR DISPLAY AT (E) EXTERIOR WINDOW
SECTION

1"=1'-0"


	MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	NA
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	K.  ADJOURNMENT


	DR 16-293 (Spaits) - Packet.pdf
	Attach B - Original Blueprints.pdf
	Original Window Specification
	SKM_C454e16092912490
	SKM_C454e16092912491

	FenestraFencraftCasements
	FenestraFencraftCasements
	StandardCasementTypes


	Attach D - Project Plans.pdf
	15096-A001
	15096-A201
	15096-A401



